
Ames Public Library Board of Trustees 
Agenda – November 19, 2020  

 
*DUE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMICTHIS WILL BE AN ELECTRONIC MEETING. 

 
If you wish to provide input on any item you may call 515-239-5630, email 
libraryboard@amespubliclibrary.org, or you may be a video participant by going to 
www.zoom.com, click “Join a Meeting”, and enter this meeting ID and Passcode: 

Zoom Meeting ID: 849 6354 4247 
Passcode: 8675309 

 
Please announce yourself at the start of the meeting to be reflected in the minutes. If you join 
during the meeting, please use the chat feature to announce your presence in order to avoid 
disrupting the meeting. Anyone wishing to comment during the Public Forum can do so by raising 
your hand in the chat feature; you will then be called on to speak following our Public Participation 
Policy. Please use the “mute” feature to minimize background noise when not speaking.  Thank 
you for your cooperation during these unprecedented times. 
 
Call to Order 7:00 p.m.  
 
Consent Agenda (Action Item)  
(All items listed under the consent agenda will be enacted by one motion. There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a request is made prior to the time the Board votes.) 
1) Resolution approving donations 
2) Motion approving minutes of the regular meeting October 15, 2020 
3) Motion approving payment of claims 10/1/20 – 10/31/20 
 
Public Forum 
Members of the public who wish to address the Board will be given the opportunity at this time. 
(Please type your full name and address in the chat feature to sign in) 
 
Activity Reports 
4) Assistant City Manager - Schildroth 
5) Administration – Schofer 
6) APLFF – Butler/Myers 
7) Budget and Finance Committee 
 
Board Education 
8) Big Impact, Low Cost: Easy Enhancements to Increase Collection Use – Klein-Hewett 
 
Policy Review 
9) Petition Policy (Review) 
 
Unfinished Business 
10) Service Offerings (Discussion) 
 
New Business 
11) FY21 Budget Amendments and FY22 Budget Request 
12) Agreement with the Ames Public Library Friends Foundation 
 
Trustee Comments 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 

Next regular meeting: Thursday, December 17, 2020 
Ames Public Library: We Connect You to the World of Ideas 

Website: www.amespubliclibrary.org    |    E-mail: libraryboard@amespubliclibrary.org 
 

Please note that this Agenda may be changed up to 24 hours before the meeting time as 
provided by Section 21.4(2), Code of Iowa. 

mailto:libraryboard@amespubliclibrary.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84963544247?pwd=czMzcnJXR0lrNCtiQVJoVytSbnNSZz09
http://www.amespubliclibrary.org/
mailto:libraryboard@amespubliclibrary.org


Donations  
 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AMES PUBLIC LIBRARY  
November 19, 2020 
 
Be it resolved that the Board of Trustees, Ames Public Library, accepts the following 
donations: 
 
1) From Joan Andersen ................................................................................... $40.00 
2) From the Story County Master Gardeners ................................ 3 gardening books 
3) In memory of Winnie Lee Carlson from: 

 Karen Ball and family .............................................................................. $50.00 
 Martha Geist ........................................................................................... $25.00 

4) In memory of Dale Edwards from: 
 Barbara and Donald Sorlie for books .................................................... $100.00 

5) In memory of Phyllis Harris from: 
 Elizabeth McClellan ................................................................................ $25.00 
 Karen and David Stimac ......................................................................... $25.00 

6) In memory of K. Robert “Bob” Kern from: 
 J. Kelly Tobin ........................................................................................ $100.00 

7) In memory of Thelma Mohr from: 
 Martha Geist ........................................................................................... $25.00 
 Phyllis Smith ........................................................................................... $40.00 

8) In memory of Dean Newlon from Kathy Newlon and family for mysteries 
and Western-themed books for the library collection ................................. $600.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

 
 
___________________________________ 

Roger Kluesner, President       Sandra Looft, Secretary 



Ames Public Library Board of Trustees 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

October 15, 2020 
 

 
The Ames Public Library (APL) Board of Trustees met in regular session on Thursday, 
October 15, 2020, via Zoom, with Barchman, Butler, Glatz, Kluesner, Looft, Marshall, 
Myers, and Thorbs-Weber in attendance. Raman was excused. Assistant City Manager 
Schildroth, Director Schofer, and Customer Accounts Services Manager Briseno were 
also in attendance.  
 
Call to Order: President Kluesner called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Consent Agenda:  

 
Moved by Glatz, seconded by Marshall, to approve the consent agenda items 
as follows: 

 
1. Resolution approving donation: 

A. From Debi Meyers ............................................................................ $500.00 
B. From Friendship Ark for the adult changing table project .............. $7,024.18 
C. From Linda and Bernard White......................................................... $400.00 
D. In memory of Phyllis Harris from: 

 Peggy Chase ................................................................................ $100.00 
 Janet Huggard ................................................................................ $50.00 
 “The Hive” writers, class of 2000, Vermont College of Fine Arts .. $250.00 

E. In memory of Dr. Elwyn Taylor from 
 Joy and John Kix ............................................................................ $20.00 
 Terry and Judy Turner .................................................................... $40.00 

F. In memory of Patricia Thiel from Wendy and Mark Henrichs .............. $50.00 
2. Motion approving minutes of the regular meeting August 20, 2020 
3. Motion approving payment of claims 8/1/20 – 8/31/20 

 
Vote on Motion: 7-0 (Kluesner abstaining; Raman excused). Approved 
unanimously. Resolution No. 2020-L022 adopted. 
 

Public Forum: None 
 
Activity Reports:  
 
Assistant City Manager Schildroth: Schildroth gave a brief report to the Board. 
 

 The City has seen a few positive COVID cases within staff; others are waiting 
test results. The ability for some employees affected by COVID to work from 
home is being reinstated on a case by case basis.  

 The Test Iowa Clinic will be moving to another location; their current location has 
been rented out. 



 The revisions to the Employee Handbook and Policies were approved October 
13. There are two policies effecting family medical leave that will are 
outstanding. 

 The MICA dental clinic closed March. Primary Health Care will be taking it over.  
 

Administrative Staff Report: Schofer gave a report to the Board.  
 

 Johnson was welcomed as the new Development Officer for the Ames Public 
Library Friends Foundation. She has jumped right in. 

 The library is continuing with programs adding in more outreach.  
o Project Smyles deliveries have resumed including setting up some Zoom 

story times with preschools and home daycares in order to interact with 
the children in real time. Some places still prefer the flexibility of the 
recorded stories for their schedules. 

o Some sites are picking up materials for home delivery. Staff has been 
staying in touch with homebound seniors throughout. We do not have all 
of our volunteers back, but we are bringing them back as it is safe.  

o Briseno and Rastogi have done a lot of virtual high school visits promoting 
online homework help, teen programs, book recommendations, and 
issuing library cards. 

o Ziegler did a virtual high school career fair today. 
o The library placed an ad and gave some promotional materials for the 

Rock On Retirement Symposium. 
o The library hosted an artist for Art Walk as part of a downtown event. 
o The library will be having a story walk launching with Snowfest the end of 

November throughout the month of December. 
 The library has partnered with United Way of Story County on a grant they 

received to purchase thirty hotspots for their students in CNA and welding 
classes. Once they are done with the hotspots they will be donated to the library. 
The library will provide resources and library cards. 

 The library is serving as a satellite voting location. Last Saturday there were 300-
400 people voting plus others dropping off absentee ballots. Satellite voting will 
be held the remaining Saturdays in October.  

 Last Saturday one of the City Council members visited the library and posted on 
social media about the library not being fully open. It was brought to the City 
Manager’s attention. 

 
APLFF Report: Myers gave a report to the Board.  
 

 The APLFF have hired an outside accountant that reviewed the books. 
Everything was in order. Starting next month the public can request to see those 
books. 

 The Development Officer was hired as Schofer stated earlier.  
 The APLFF received a substantial donation from a home delivery patron that 

passed away. Board members asked if there will be a press release with this 
information; it will depend on the family’s wishes.   

 



Board Education: 
 
Schofer introduced Briseno to the Board. Briseno is the Customer Account Services 
Manager. She works closely with fines and fees and the patrons they impact.  
 
Briseno presented information on Fine Free.  
 
Some key highlights: 
 

 The library staff has been working to make the library more accessible to 
everyone, including evaluating processes and procedures, offering 
opportunities for customers to volunteer to reduce charges, and encouraging 
payment plans, however they kept returning to a broader need for equity. 

 
 Staff attended conference sessions, read research, and discussed with 

colleagues across the country their experience in going fine free. 
 

 The community members are facing additional struggles due to the 
intersections of the derecho, COVID-19, and racial injustice. People have lost 
jobs, are experiencing economic hardships, and families face an extremely 
challenging school year ahead. Public libraries play a critical role in the well-
being and education of our communities, and public library service should be 
accessible to everyone, especially now. Eliminating overdue fines is a 
significant action that would demonstrate our commitment to service, access, 
and equity. 

 
 Charging fines is unduly punitive to those who most need the Library, now and 

in the future. It does not affect the return rate for materials, and can actually 
have adverse effects on returns when customers feel ashamed and wish to 
avoid the Library. The customers most directly affected are those who can 
least afford any barrier between them and the resources they need to read 
with their children, increase their skills and knowledge, and enjoy leisure 
materials. 

 
 Briseno presented slides showing overlays of the patrons currently blocked on 

the 2019 USA Diversity Index, and the patrons currently blocked on the 2019 
USA Average Household Income. 

 
 Shame about overdue fines is a real prevalent issue and has tangible impacts 

on the use of the library. The removal of thousands of negative interactions in 
a year has the potential to revolutionize our Library environment for the better. 

 
Briseno entertained questions from the Board regarding other libraries’ experiences with 
materials being returned, fundraising for fine payment (i.e. adopt a person’s fines or 
companies donating to cover cost), and the difference between fines (charges for items 
being late) and fees (lost items, damaged items, or services). Other libraries have not 



reported an increase in the loss of materials, or seen increases in items not being 
returned on time. 
 
The Board thanked Briseno for her time and amazing amount of work she put into it.  
 
Policy Review: 
 
Circulation and Customer Accounts Policy: Schofer introduced the policy. The fines 
would be dropped from the wording in this policy, and the age of the ID requirement 
would change from 12 years of age to 16 years of age. 
 
Butler had not previously been aware of the implied consent. They discussed the 
importance of individuals to report library cards lost or stolen for this reason. 
 
Glatz asked if we would be eliminating fines if we accepted these changes. It was 
confirmed that it would. 
 

Moved by Glatz, seconded by Butler, to approve the revisions to the 
Circulation and Customer Accounts Policy as presented. 
 
Vote on Motion: 7-0 (Kluesner abstaining; Raman excused). Approved 
unanimously. Resolution No. 2020-L023 adopted. 

 
Library Charges (Addendum to Circulation and Customer Accounts Policy):  Schofer 
introduced the policy. The proposed changes would remove the fines, remove the 
processing charge, remove the cost to replace a library card, and raise the amount to 
block an account to $25.00. 
 

Moved by Barchman, seconded by Myers, to approve the revisions to the 
Library Charges (Addendum to Circulation and Customer Accounts Policy) as 
amended adding the word “equipment” to “Adult and Youth Materials”. 
 
Vote on Motion: 7-0 (Kluesner abstaining; Raman excused). Approved 
unanimously. Resolution No. 2020-L024 adopted. 

 
Public Participation Policy: Schofer introduced the policy. In looking at other libraries’ 
policies recommendations were made to change the word “individuals” to “community 
members”. Other proposed changes include changing “Board President” to “presiding 
officer”, and adding procedures for addressing the Board into the policy.   

 
Moved by Glatz, seconded by Butler, to approve the revisions to the Public 
Participation Policy as presented 

 
Butler asked how we would distinguish who was a community member versus who 
wasn’t. Schofer stated that the cards do require a complete address. The Board 
discussed community members versus non-members and requirements of the open 
meeting laws. The language would allow the Board to give preference during the Public 
Forum to community members. 



 
Vote on Motion: 7-0 (Kluesner abstaining; Raman excused). Approved 
unanimously. Resolution No. 2020-L025 adopted. 

 
Investments Policy:  Schofer introduced the policy. The library relies on the City to 
conduct investment transactions. Schofer spoke with the City Finance Manager who 
confirmed no changes to the City of Ames Investment Policy are planned at this time.  
 

Moved by Barchman, seconded by Myers, to approve the review of the 
Investments Policy. 
 
Vote on Motion: 7-0 (Kluesner abstaining; Raman excused). Approved 
unanimously. Resolution No. 2020-L026 adopted. 
 

Unfinished Business:  
 
Strategic plan update. Schofer had previously shared the draft version of the Strategic 
Plan including the priorities and goals at the September meeting. It was requested that 
an introduction be added, and that a timeline and performance matrix be available for 
the Board to review at least a week prior to tonight’s meeting. Schofer sent out versions 
of the Strategic Plan prior to the Board packet. Each version of the plan has the same 
priorities and goals. The difference in the plans is the size of the document, and the 
number of activities, if any, that are shown for each goal. 
 

Moved by Marshall, seconded by Looft, to approve the priorities, goals, and 
activities of the 2020-2024 Strategic Plan as presented. 

 
Marshall asked how to distinguish the goals from the priorities. There are six main goals 
(Equity, Inclusion, Civic Engagement, Access, Wellness, and Staff Development). 
 
Barchman asked if this was going to be sent to a copy editor. She pointed out a typo 
under Bringing It Together. 
 
Kluesner likes the 3 
 

Moved by Glatz, seconded by Thorbs-Weber, to only consider one of the three 
versions of the Strategic Plan that were sent to the Board the morning of 
October 9, and not the version that is included in the Board packet tonight. 
 

Glatz reiterated the importance of having Board Packet materials early enough to have 
sufficient time to review the information. 
 
Schofer reiterated that the Board is not approving a particular picture or format of the 
document but the content. Glatz stated it is approving a final document. 
 
Barchman said her issue with the version that Glatz prefers advertises a particular 
program in that version. 
 



Looft is comfortable with everyone chiming in on content but would like to defer the layout 
and design part to staff and marketing. She asked if the content is different between the 
versions. Schofer stated one version has all the activities, one version doesn’t have any 
activities, and the newest version in the packet has two activities per goal.  
 
Barchman asked if we would be using different versions for different purposes. Schofer 
stated that a printed piece would be the printed piece but the version on the website may 
include more details.  
 
Glatz reiterated that he did not have sufficient time to review the content on this version. 
 
Kluesner asked for a vote on the amended motion by Glatz. 
 
Schofer stated that if it means delaying the approval of the Strategic Plan a month in order 
to consider the version in the packet than she would prefer to do so instead of not 
considering that version. 
 

Vote on the amended motion to consider only one of the three versions 
received the morning of October 9 : 2-5 (Glatz, Marshall voting Aye; 
Barchman, Butler, Looft, Myers, Thorbs-Weber voting Nay; Kluesner 
abstaining; Raman excused). Motion failed. 
 

Kluesner interprets the resolution to read “as presented” as in the version in the packet. 
The Board was specific in their request to have the information at least a week prior to 
the meeting. He did not receive his packet until last night. 
 
Looft feels comfortable voting on it because the content is the same. 
 
Marshall adds that the major content hasn’t changed. She trusts the staff to decide 
which picture goes in, or what the format it. 
 
Myers agrees that it is the same information just presented differently. 
 
Barchman agrees. She views the different documents as the same content with uses for 
different audiences or purposes. 
 

Moved by Glatz, seconded by Barchman, to table approval of the Strategic 
Plan until the next month. 

 
Schofer asked Glatz if he feels he is voting on a final document. Glatz stated that no, it 
is the content. Schofer reiterated that the content hasn’t changed. Glatz reiterated that 
he didn’t receive it in time to read it in order to confirm that content hadn’t changed. 
 
Myers said she thought they were voting on the goals, priorities, and activities, not the 
final document. The wording or pictures or layout may change. 
 
Glatz stated last time he said that it read like an internal document. The preamble is 
worded differently in different versions.  



 
Myers reiterated that we are not voting on the preamble. We are voting on the priorities, 
goals, and activities. 
 
Kluesner asked if there was a reason why the Board would need to approve the 
Strategic Plan tonight versus next month. 
 
Schofer stated that we could absolutely wait if needed. Schofer stated that the library 
would be completing all the activities regardless if they are printed in a public version of 
the Strategic Plan. 
 
Kluesner restated the current motion is to table approval of the Strategic Plan until next 
month to consider the three documents.  
 
Glatz’s preference would be that we designate which version we are considering. 
 
Kluesner was referring to the version included in the packet along with the timeline and 
matrix. 
 
Glatz clarified that the timeline and matrix were not for approval, just supporting 
documents. 
 

Vote on the amended motion to postpone approval of the Strategic Plan until 
November: 2-5 (Glatz, Thorbs-Weber voting Aye; Barchman, Butler, Looft, 
Marshall, Myers, voting Nay; Kluesner abstaining; Raman excused). Motion 
failed. 
 

Myers clarified they would be approving the priorities, goals, and activities. 
 

Vote on the original motion to approve the priorities, goals, and activities of 
the 2020-2024 Strategic Plan as presented: 7-0 (Barchman, Butler, Kluesner, 
Looft, Marshall, Myers, Thorbs-Weber voting Aye; Glatz abstaining; Raman 
excused) Motion passed.  Resolution No. 2020-L027 adopted. 

 
Reopening Plan: Schofer had already been talking to the Management Team about our 
next steps in adding services. The Leadership Team will be looking at logistics for our 
next phase.  
 
Schofer is not confident that we are ready to move to the next phase. Right now the 
library is offering computer use, copy/print services, holds pick up, limited browsing in 
the lobby, quick picks, grab and go bags, personalized picks, online programs, and 
really hitting the majority of the needs. Kids just went back to school and the bars just 
re-opened a week ago; we just don’t know what the numbers are going to do. There 
have been a lot of positive comments from people that appreciate the safe environment.  
 
Marshall stated that she thinks we need more marketing so people are aware of 
everything the library is doing. 



 
Kluesner stated we are not re-opening; we are open. 
 
Looft stated she read all the comments on the Ames People Post including comments 
from community members saying how grateful they are for how safe the library is, 
volunteers stating they will have to leave if the library increases traffic, and comments of 
people chastising the City Council member for not going directly to the Director or Board 
with their concerns instead of using social media to do so. ISU is closing. She does not 
feel now is the time to go to the next phase. 
 
Glatz asked what the turnaround time is for holds. The goal is to have items ready for 
pickup in 24 hours. Briseno added there is a three day quarantine period, so pulling 
holds may be impacted by items in the quarantine, but so much of the material is on the 
shelf and able to be pulled that day. They are pulling items in the morning and in the 
afternoon to decrease the turnaround time. 
 
Schofer mentioned having slots on the radio shows to plug some of our current 
services. Glatz asked if we can send blanket emails. Briseno stated that we can get 
black listed if we targeted everyone. Ocken has started to do so some smaller Page 
Ones. Butler suggested adding an ad in the obituaries that say the Library is not dead. 
Myers asked if we should provide a memo for City Council to provide an update. 
Schildroth suggested sending the monthly highlights to update the Council and the 
public. 
 
Trustee Comments:  
 

 Marshall – I’m grateful for all the work we have accomplished tonight, and for 
Schofer and Briseno. 

 Looft – I’m excited about momentous move to remove fines that was decided 
upon tonight and she thanks the staff for all the work to getting us here.  

 Thorbs-Weber – wants to thank the staff for the holds. It usually takes her two 
days for her to be able to come in and get her items picked up. 

 Schildroth – this is a Board that is very involved and very active with the library 
and an important part of not only the City but the whole network of services 
throughout our community. Thank you for all the thoughtfulness and 
perseverance, and listening to comments and things that are out there but that 
willingness to turn that into a moment to help people learn and make more of a 
public statement that is positive and more meaningful to the community. Thank 
you for serving in that capacity and keeping the library moving forward. And 
thank you to the staff that are just awesome and very excited about the work 
they do. 

 Myers – she just reiterates other comments. She appreciates the hard work, 
and for us finally going Fine Free, she’s really excited about that, and for the 
Strategic Plan it takes a lot of work and momentum and months of hard work 
and she really appreciates the staff for all that, and for continuing to make it a 
safe environment for staff and patrons. 



 Glatz – he’s not intentionally keeping everyone up beyond their bedtimes, and 
as he has said but feels is lost, that the document that you all have assured me 
is the same as the one I liked a week ago, is a great document, and so you 
don’t think he batted 0-2 on motions, the first two motions he moved through 
making him rather quickly making him 2-4.  

 Butler – just thank you to everyone that has contributed to this process in a very 
caring and professional matter and also for the camaraderie, that all of us can 
listen to each other respectfully, have our own opinions, and come back as a 
group that overall just wants to do the best we can. 

 Barchman – it has been a joy to watch Briseno with all the news of the fine free 
and strategic Plan. She is really excited for Schofer and Briseno to tell the staff 
in the morning.  

 Kluesner – shared a personal story of his childhood. When he moved he 
needed $0.25 for a new library card. His family didn’t have the money for that 
so he crossed his old address out and wrote his new address on his card. 
When they moved again he did the same thing. He still has his library card with 
the three addresses on it, but had the library gone fine free then, we would 
have had three cards. Thank you everyone for a great meeting and a huge 
night. 

 
Adjournment:  
 

Moved by Myers, seconded by Marshall, to adjourn at 9:12 pm. 
Vote on Motion: 7-0 (Kluesner abstained; Raman excused). Motion approved 
unanimously. 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, November 19, 2020, at 7:00 p.m., via 
Zoom. 
 
 
 
________________________________           ________________________________ 
Melissa Johannes, Library Secretary  Sandra Looft, Board Secretary 
 



Library Claims

October 1 - October 31, 2020

Administration FY20

PAYROLL SUMMARY PERMANENT SALARIES/WAGES 44,091.80$               

PAYROLL SUMMARY TEMPORARY SALARIES/WAGES 189.00$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY DENTAL INSURANCE 442.72$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS DISABILITY 222.67$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY LIFE INSURANCE 74.25$                       

PAYROLL SUMMARY HEALTH INSURANCE 7,879.90$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY MEDICARE FICA 628.27$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY FICA 2,686.32$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS 4,180.12$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY WORKERS COMPENSATION 140.43$                    

AUG 2020 PRINTING CHRGS PRINT SHOP SERVICES 28.47$                       

LONG DISTANCE CHARGES CITY LONG DISTANCE 2.66$                         

JUL 2020 EQUIPMENT CHRGS FLEET MAINTENANCE 245.24$                    

JUL 2020 EQUIPMENT CHRGS FLEET REPLACEMENT 2,219.00$                 

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE POSTAGE/FREIGHT 23.27$                       

POSTAGE CHARGES POSTAGE/FREIGHT 4.52$                         

BANK OF AMERICA DUES/MEMBERSHIPS 954.00$                    

AUG 2020 PRINTING CHRGS RECRUITING COSTS 3.15$                         

CITY OF AMES UTILITIES ELECTRIC SERVICE 8,015.19$                 

CENTURYLINK OUTSIDE PHONE SERVICE 258.50$                    

VERIZON WIRELESS OUTSIDE PHONE SERVICE 187.53$                    

IA COMMUNICATIONS NETWORK OUTSIDE PHONE SERVICE 1,956.00$                 

CITY OF AMES UTILITIES WATER/SANITARY SEWER 316.18$                    

CHITTY GARBAGE SERVICE IN WASTE DISPOSAL 189.76$                    

ALLIANT ENERGY/IPL NATURAL GAS 47.94$                       

ACI MECHANICAL INC MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 1,008.00$                 

BACKFLOW PREVENTION SVC O MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 250.00$                    

FITZ ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 120.00$                    

BANK OF AMERICA TECHNOLOGY MAINT/SUPPORT 295.00$                    

XEROX CORPORATION RENTALS/LEASES 469.15$                    

ABM JANITORIAL BORTH CENT NON-CITY SERVICE (2,178.51)$                

PREFERRED PEST MANAGEMENT NON-CITY SERVICE 200.00$                    

ABM JANITORIAL NORTH CENT NON-CITY SERVICE 3,239.95$                 

CITY LAUNDERING COMPANY NON-CITY SERVICE 26.89$                       

CH ISSUES OFFICE SUPPLIES 1.88$                         

OFFICE DEPOT INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 15.82$                       

STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAG OFFICE SUPPLIES 419.93$                    

BANK OF AMERICA MINOR COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 219.00$                    

BANK OF AMERICA STRUCTURAL MATERIAL 45.24$                       

CENT IA DISTRIBUTING INC CLEANING SUPPLIES 48.00$                       

BANK OF AMERICA CLEANING SUPPLIES 55.83$                       

BANK OF AMERICA EQUIPMENT PARTS/SUPPLIES 484.03$                    

BANK OF AMERICA MINOR EQUIPMENT/TOOLS 12.99$                       

Total Administration 79,720.09$              



Library Claims

October 1 - October 31, 2020

Resource Services 

PAYROLL SUMMARY PERMANENT SALARIES/WAGES 25,537.80$               

PAYROLL SUMMARY DENTAL INSURANCE 266.32$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS DISABILITY 120.05$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY LIFE INSURANCE 57.76$                       

PAYROLL SUMMARY HEALTH INSURANCE 5,006.12$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY MEDICARE FICA 349.89$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY FICA 1,496.19$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS 2,410.77$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY WORKERS COMPENSATION 30.65$                       

LONG DISTANCE CHARGES CITY LONG DISTANCE 0.30$                         

BAKER & TAYLOR INC EQUIPMENT PARTS/SUPPLIES 514.45$                    

CRYSTAL CLEAR WATER EQUIPMENT PARTS/SUPPLIES 17.00$                       

DEMCO INC EQUIPMENT PARTS/SUPPLIES 663.08$                    

MIDWEST TAPE EQUIPMENT PARTS/SUPPLIES 433.40$                    

STATE LIBRARY OF IOWA ELECTRONIC COLLECTION 3,562.90$                 

MIDWEST TAPE ELECTRONIC COLLECTION 6,102.00$                 

OVERDRIVE ELECTRONIC COLLECTION 4,131.82$                 

KANOPY LLC ELECTRONIC COLLECTION 845.00$                    

USA TODAY PERIODICALS 113.40$                    

BANK OF AMERICA PERIODICALS 20.00$                       

WT COX INFORMATION SERVIC PERIODICALS 7,251.02$                 

BAKER & TAYLOR INC YOUTH COLLECTION 2,279.35$                 

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES YOUTH COLLECTION 1,069.86$                 

JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD YOUTH COLLECTION 12,824.97$               

AMAZON YOUTH COLLECTION 831.67$                    

MIDWEST TAPE YOUTH COLLECTION 1,150.54$                 

BANK OF AMERICA YOUTH COLLECTION 191.70$                    

PENWORTHY COMPANY YOUTH COLLECTION 103.64$                    

LIBRARY IDEAS LLC YOUTH COLLECTION 809.00$                    

AMAZON AUDIO-VISUAL COLLECTION 393.87$                    

MIDWEST TAPE AUDIO-VISUAL COLLECTION 6,363.65$                 

BAKER & TAYLOR INC ADULT PRINT COLLECTION 9,956.50$                 

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES ADULT PRINT COLLECTION 591.55$                    

AMAZON ADULT PRINT COLLECTION 1,081.60$                 

INFOUSA MARKETING INC ADULT PRINT COLLECTION 550.00$                    

BANK OF AMERICA ADULT PRINT COLLECTION 244.17$                    

SAMP, SONDRA REFUNDS 112.90$                    

EMANUELSON, PATRICIA REFUNDS 99.37$                       

Total Resource Services 97,584.26$              

Youth Services 

PAYROLL SUMMARY PERMANENT SALARIES/WAGES 41,029.06$               

PAYROLL SUMMARY TEMPORARY SALARIES/WAGES 742.50$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY DENTAL INSURANCE 345.18$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS DISABILITY 206.22$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY LIFE INSURANCE 82.54$                       



Library Claims

October 1 - October 31, 2020

PAYROLL SUMMARY HEALTH INSURANCE 5,900.88$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY MEDICARE FICA 582.80$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY FICA 2,491.95$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS 3,943.26$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY WORKERS COMPENSATION 62.00$                       

LONG DISTANCE CHARGES CITY LONG DISTANCE 1.35$                         

BANK OF AMERICA OFFICE SUPPLIES 60.92$                       

Total Youth Services 55,448.66$              

Adult Services 

PAYROLL SUMMARY PERMANENT SALARIES/WAGES 30,544.66$               

PAYROLL SUMMARY DENTAL INSURANCE 113.22$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS DISABILITY 107.58$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY LIFE INSURANCE 66.02$                       

PAYROLL SUMMARY HEALTH INSURANCE 1,938.48$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY MEDICARE FICA 433.61$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY FICA 1,854.06$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS 2,883.40$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY WORKERS COMPENSATION 36.64$                       

LONG DISTANCE CHARGES CITY LONG DISTANCE 12.69$                       

POSTAGE CHARGES POSTAGE/FREIGHT 4.29$                         

Total Adult Services 37,994.65$              

Customer Account Services 

PAYROLL SUMMARY PERMANENT SALARIES/WAGES 38,002.59$               

PAYROLL SUMMARY TEMPORARY SALARIES/WAGES 13,418.86$               

PAYROLL SUMMARY COVID19 LEAVE 466.42$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY DENTAL INSURANCE 281.70$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS DISABILITY 191.40$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY LIFE INSURANCE 85.29$                       

PAYROLL SUMMARY HEALTH INSURANCE 4,537.82$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY MEDICARE FICA 726.09$                    

PAYROLL SUMMARY FICA 3,104.57$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY IPERS 4,898.18$                 

PAYROLL SUMMARY WORKERS COMPENSATION 158.17$                    

LONG DISTANCE CHARGES CITY LONG DISTANCE 21.71$                       

AUTOMATED MERCHANT SYSTEM OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SVCS 115.25$                    

POSTAGE CHARGES POSTAGE/FREIGHT 410.45$                    

ONESOURCE RECRUITING COSTS 35.00$                       

BANK OF AMERICA OFFICE SUPPLIES (40.05)$                     

DEMCO INC MINOR OFFICE EQUIPMENT 2,303.98$                 

BANK OF AMERICA SPECIAL PROJECT SUPPLIES 615.48$                    

Total Customer Account Services 69,332.91$              

Total: 340,080.57$            

Roger Kluesner, President Sandra Looft, Secretary    Date   



Ames Public 

2g2gg1Exp(!nditure Su111111ar:Y- All 
October 2020 
4 month= 33% 

Fund 238 Fund 239 Fund 241 Fund 240 

General Direct Friends Donations Future Total 

Fund State Aid Foundation & Grants Needs Expenses 
Administration: 

General Administration 429,675 3,005 4,806 437,486 

Total Administration 429,675 3,005 4,806 437,486 

Resource Services: 
Collections Administration 182,295 1~2~25 
Electronic Collection/Licenses IQl,'Jl5 2,4~0 IQ,QOl 11'.4_,]6§ 
Periodicals /SJleci<1lProject Collections 16,8Q2 l~,461 36,~63 

Juvenile 29,5I<i .8,8~8 38,~'.)2 

Audio/Visual Collection 18,880. .18,880 
Adult Collection 3,124 163 39,?90 
Refunds 212 212 

Comr\lteriog\lipment/Software 
Total Resource Services 385,421 2,450 41,424 163 429,458 

Youth Services: 224,584 224,584 
Employee Benefits 

Outside Professional Services 1,025 1,025 

Food & Feed 
Minor OfficeEquipment 3,523 3,523 

S!Jecial Project ~upplies 4,781 4,781 

Total Youth Services 224,584 9,329 233,913 

Adult Services: 149,770 149,770 

Food 

Printi11g/Graphics 
Outside Professional Services 500 500 

Special Project SuJlplies 446 446 

Total Adult Services 149,770 946 150,716 

Customer Account Services: 

Circulation Services 256,017 256,017 

Total Customer Acount Services 256,017 256,017 

Library Improvements: 

Small Talk Grant: 43 43 

Project Smyles: 254 254 

Books for Babies: 

Harrison Barnes Reading Academy: 1,297 1,297 

I:an~e-Print Books Beguest: 5,838 5,838 

Gihna11, S1nith§:f'ei11~t!rg : 
Adult Collectio11 (~1nith) 
Youth Collection ((}ih11an §: Feinberg) 

TotalI3(!(j\l(!St 

Total Expenses 1,445,466 2,450 60,840 6,266 1,515,022 

Page 1/1 



Packet Page 2



Packet Page 3



 

Petition Policy 
Section: Library Operations 

 

 

Approved: 9/16/2010 
Reviewed: 2/19/2015, 10/23/2017, 12/17/2020 
Revised:  

 
 

Ames Public Library does not allow active or passive solicitation of petition signatures on library 

premises, except in a scheduled meeting or program held in a library meeting room. The term 

“premises” includes inside and outside areas of library property and the bookmobile. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Briefing Paper: Budget Proposals         November 19, 2020 

 

Background:  Adjustments to the current year’s budget (fiscal year 2020/21 or FY21) and initial 

requests for next year (FY22) were requested of all City departments by November 12.  Schofer 

and Johannes met with the City’s Finance Director, Budget Officer, and Assistant City Manager 

on Wednesday, November 18, to review the initial entries and make adjustments per their 

recommendations.   

 

Notes on the General Fund:   

 Revenue has decreased due in part to the reduction of fines during COVID, and 

copy/print revenue decreasing with the building closure. The Boards decision to go Fine 

Free will reduce this revenue source in future budget years. Our cost for collection 

services and credit card fees will be reduced to offset some of this loss. 

 Expenditures in the current year are anticipated to be lower than projected due to 

vacancies that are in the process of being filled, a reduction in conference budgets, a 

reduction of food and program supplies and other general expenses down due to COVID.    

 Postage has decreased significantly for interlibrary loans due to a new state-funded 

Library Shares delivery service. 

 Our collection budget remains flat overall but we have made internal adjustments shifting 

funds towards our electronic collections while reducing our physical audio collection. In 

doing so we have been able to add several new resources including Cypress Resume, 

Law Depot, Mometrix (test prep database), New York Times, Niche Academy (video 

tutorials), Wall Street Journal, and most recently BookFlix (pre K – 3rd grade learning 

tool).  

 The state is funding a chat reference feature that the library plans to roll out in December. 

 FY22 budget requests include minimal increases primarily for salary and benefits. 

  

 

Requested Action: Administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the initial 

FY21 Budget Adjustments and FY22 Requests.  



Library Services
26 - 455/456

2019/20   
Actuals

2020/21 
Adopted

2020/21 
Adjusted

2021/22 
Requested

Percentage 
Change from 

Adopted
Expenditures by Category:

Personal Services  $     3,175,624  $     3,451,840  $     3,278,309  $     3,587,371 3.9%
Internal Services  $        139,945  $        148,140  $        147,300  $        153,319 3.5%
Contractual Services  $        519,288  $        629,634  $        573,531  $        609,414 -3.2%
Commodities  $        146,078  $        163,612  $        214,821  $        208,895 27.7%
Collection Materials  $        576,377  $        601,945  $        700,275  $        632,684 5.1%
Capital  $                  -    $                  -    $                  -    $                  -   0.0%
Other Expenditures  $               415  $               700  $               700  $               700 0.0%
Total Expenditures  $     4,557,727  $     4,995,871  $     4,914,936  $     5,192,383 3.9%

Funding Sources:

Charges for Services  $          67,871  $        105,800  $          18,000  $          22,000 -79.2%
State of Iowa  $          55,574  $          56,000  $          55,000  $          55,500 -0.9%
Story County  $        171,748  $        155,000  $        162,829  $        160,000 3.2%
Library Friends Foundation  $        133,556  $        186,011  $        338,082  $        255,273 37.2%
Direct State Aid  $          12,855  $          14,500  $          15,411  $          15,500 6.9%
Donations/Grants  $          26,366  $            6,121  $          11,090  $            6,146 0.4%

Total Revenues  $        467,970  $        523,432  $        600,412  $        514,419 -1.7%

General Fund Support  $     4,089,757  $     4,472,439  $     4,314,524  $     4,677,964 4.6%

Total Funding Sources  $     4,557,727  $     4,995,871  $     4,914,936  $     5,192,383 3.9%

Personnel - Authorized FTE 37.00 37.00 37.00 37.00



 

 

Operating Budget – FY21 Adjustments and FY22 Requests 
  
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AMES PUBLIC LIBRARY  
NOVEMBER 19, 2020 
 
 
 
Be it resolved that the Board of Trustees, Ames Public Library, approves adjustments to 
the operating budget for fiscal year 2020/21 and requests for fiscal year 2021/22 as 
presented. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

 
 
___________________________________ 

Roger Kluesner, President       Sandra Looft, Secretary 
 



Agreement Between 
Ames Public Library Board of Trustees 

and Ames Public Library Friends Foundation 

1. Background 
Ames Public Library Friends Foundation (APLFF) is a 501(c)(3) entity incorporated in 
the State of Iowa. The purpose of APLFF is to operate exclusively for the public 
benefit of Ames Public Library (the Library). 

2. Purpose 
APLFF provides an ongoing, tax-exempt, not-for-profit repository for the 
accumulation of funds in support of the Library. These funds may be used for capital 
improvements to the Library, for a fund for meeting short-term budget contingencies, 
special projects of the Library, or for an endowment fund. This support is considered 
to be in addition to the continuing tax-support responsibilities of the City of Ames and 
other funding jurisdictions. APLFF will also be prepared to organize and conduct 
fund raising efforts initiated or endorsed by the Library Board of Trustees. APLFF will 
not attempt to define the needs of the Library; rather, it will respond as appropriate to 
those needs defined by the Library Board of Trustees. 

3. Goals 
The goals of APLFF shall include the following: 

a. To establish a financially secure investment fund for the receipt of gifts for the 
benefit of the Library. 

b. To promote deferred giving in support of the Library through estate planning, 
life insurance beneficiary designation, trusts and other mechanisms. 

c. To develop broad recognition in the community that will serve as a base of 
support for future fund raising efforts. 

d. To ensure that contributions are used in accordance with donors' 
specifications. 

4. Responsibilities 
a. APLFF agrees to operate in such a manner that retains its legal status as a 

tax-exempt, non-profit organization pursuant to section 501 (c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, or any successor statute. 

b. In support of the actions of the Library Board of Trustees, APLFF will conduct 
public fundraising efforts, will maintain bank accounts and other investments, 
may establish and operate endowment and trust funds, and will respond to 
requests for funding from the Library Board of Trustees within the ability of 
APLFF. 

c. APLFF will be responsible for determining the extent to which its fundraising 
is feasible within the community. 

d. APLFF may utilize funds to support its operational requirements. 
e. APLFF utilizes Library resources to achieve its objectives; usage of such 

resources and compensation related thereto are governed by a Memorandum 

APLFF - Page 14 



of Understanding executed between the Library Board of Trustees and 
APLFF. 

f. APLFF will make its budget available at the Library Board's request. 
g. APLFF will engage a professional to conduct an annual financial review. 

5. Relationship 
Although APLFF exists as an independent fundraising body, the purposes for which 
those funds are solicited and the timing and nature of fund raising activities are to be 
determined by the Library Board of Trustees. Two members of the Library Board of 
Trustees serve on the APLFF Board of Directors and a regular liaison is established 
between the two boards. The APLFF Board of Directors recognizes the role of the 
Library Board of Trustees as the body responsible for the operations of the Library, 
the establishment of Library policy and the development of plans and budgets for the 
Library. The Library Board of Trustees will use the funds in accordance with the 
corresponding specified needs. 

6. Duration of the Agreement 
This agreement shall take effect immediately and shall replace the previous 
agreement executed May 18, 2017. This agreement shall stay in force in perpetuity 
or upon the dissolution of either entity. This agreement may be revised at any time, 
but shall be reviewed by both parties at least every three years. 

Signed _________________ _ 
Roger Kluesner, President Date 
Ames Public Library Board of Trustees 

9 
Signed -.'-+-rr;a_~ __ ·---'-~-· --'--~_(/_te';:tg_'/_/ J_~-__ _ 

( J nnie LeGates, President 
" mes Public Library Friends Foundation 

7 Toate 

APLFF - Page 15 



Agreement with Ames Public Library Friends Foundation  
 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AMES PUBLIC LIBRARY  
NOVEMBER 19, 2020 
 
 
Be it resolved that the Board of Trustees, Ames Public Library, adopts the revised 
Agreement with Ames Public Library Friends Foundation as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

 
 
___________________________________ 

Roger Kluesner, President       Sandra Looft, Secretary 
 




